

CITY OF CONWAY, ARKANSAS PLANNING COMMISSION

March 15, 2021 · 7:00pm



City of Conway PLANNING COMMISSION

March 15, 2021 · 7:00 pm

Due to restrictions imposed because of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Planning Commission meeting will be broadcast on the City of Conway <u>Facebook</u> and <u>YouTube</u> pages. Please submit questions/ comments <u>via email to Planning Staff</u> by 3:00pm the day the meeting.

Call to Order.

Roll Call.

Approval of Minutes. February 16, 2021

I. Subdivision Review

A. Request for preliminary plat approval of Oak Grove PUD (SUB2021JAN05)

II. Appeal Review

A. Review of Development Review Appeal - Hervey Insurance Agency (SIT2020DEC01)

III. Public Hearings

- A. Request to rezone property at 1850 East German Lane from R-1 to C-2 (REZ2021FEB02)
- B. Request to rezone property at 2310 E Oak Street from C-3 and R-1 to S-1 (REZ2021MAR01)

IV. Additional Business

- A. Adoption of the City-wide Historic Preservation Plan
- B. Items as decided by the Commission

Adjourn

PLANNING COMMISSION

Brandon Ruhl, Chairman Arthur Ingram, Vice-Chairman Anne Tucker, Secretary Rebekah Fincher Drew Gainor Latisha Sanders-Jones Laura King Brian Townsend Larry Webb Rhea Williams

The Conway Planning Commission makes recommendations to the City Council on public hearing items. Items reviewed on this agenda will be considered by the City Council as early as March 23, 2021.

Items not approved by the Planning Commission may be appealed to the City Council within 30 days of Planning Commission denial, with the exception of decisions made by the Planning Commission acting as the Board of Zoning Adjustment. If an item is appealed to the City Council a public notice will be placed on the property and conwayarkansas.gov

Request for Preliminary Plat Approval - Oak Grove Planned Unit Development

Record No. SUB2021JAN05

APPLICANT

Central Arkansas Professional Surveying 1021 Front St Conway, AR 72032 **PROPERTY OWNER** Chris Martin Proper Homes, LLC 9 Davis Hill Rd Conway, AR 72032 **STAFF REVIEW BY** Levi Hill, AICP, Assistant Director

I.A



Location. 1150 Museum Rd; 1 & 3 Oak Grove Dr.

Site Area. 6.52 acres +/-.

Current Zoning. PUD (Planned Unit Development).

Existing Structures. Two single-family residences.

Overlay. None.

REQUEST

The applicant is requesting preliminary approval of a 20-lot subdivision located at 1150 Museum Rd and 1-3 Oak Grove Dr. The property was recently rezoned to PUD (Planned Unit Development) allowing the development of single-family and two-family lots. The proposed lots range from 8,700 square feet to 23,500 square feet, consistent with the lot requirements of the approved PUD. The subdivision will feature one access point from E Oak St and a second access point from Museum Rd. The proposed lots will be accessed by Oak Grove Dr, a private street proposed to be improved as a part of this development. A 5-foot sidewalk is proposed along the east side of the private drive, consistent with the requirements of the PUD.

No waivers were included as a part of the request.

Request for Preliminary Plat Approval - Oak Grove Planned Unit Development



Record No. SUB2021JAN05





Record No. SUB2021JAN05

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS

Planning Staff recommends approval of the preliminary plat contingent upon the completion of the amended punch list and associated conditions of approval. The proposed lot sizes and frontage widths are consistent with the requirements of the PUD (Planned Unit Development) zoning for this site.

I.A

The following lists the items that are reviewed by the Conway Planning Department for the changes and/or additions as required by the applicable provisions of the Conway Subdivision Ordinance.

CORRECTIONS NEEDED ON THE PLAT

- 1. Show all hydrant locations.
- 2. Corrections as noted on Preliminary Plat.

CONDITIONS

- 1. Preliminary Plat approval from all reviewing agencies shall be obtained.
- 2. A 5-foot developer required sidewalk shall be constructed along the east side of the private drive.
- 3. Wheelchair ramps shall be provided by the developer/subdivider in accordance with the City of Conway's Standard Details.
- 4. A draft of any Bill of Assurance proposed for the subdivision generally describing proposed covenants, restrictions and conditions applicable to the property included in the submitted plat.
- 5. Fire hydrants must be placed so that the furthest point of a lot in a residential subdivision is not more than 600 feet from the hydrant located on the same street. Variances must be approved by the Planning Commission and Fire Chief.
- 6. Utility easements as required by Conway Corporation are needed.
- 7. Drainage easements as required by the City Engineer are needed.
- 8. All other applicable provisions of the City of Conway Subdivision Ordinance (O-00-03) shall be satisfied and accounted for prior to Preliminary Plat approval.
- Receipt of an approved copy of the Preliminary Plat along with approved Street and Drainage Plans shall constitute authorization of the Planning Commission for the developer to proceed with the preparation of the Final Plat.
- 10. All roadway improvements shall be privately maintained.
- 11. A Property Owners' Association shall be required to be formed and operate in perpetuity to maintain all common areas and improvements such as streets, sidewalks, and drainage.

Request for Preliminary Plat Approval - Oak Grove Planned Unit Development

I.A

Record No. SUB2021JAN05



Record No. SIT2020DEC01

APPLICANT Tyler Group 240 Skyline Dr, Ste 3000 Conway, AR 72032

OWNER

Hervey Insurance Agency, Inc. 345 Hallelujah Dr Conway, AR 72034

DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

Sowell Architects 1315 North St, Ste 100 Conway, AR 72034

STAFF REVIEW BY

Levi Hill, AICP, Asst. Director



Location. 3200 Prince St; located at the northwest corner of Prince St and Country Club Rd.

Site Area. 0.96 acres +/-.

Current Zoning. PUD (Planned Unit Development).

Existing Structures. One single-family residence.

Overlay. None.

REQUEST

The applicant has submitted a site development plan proposing the reuse of an existing 1,947 square foot singlefamily residence to function as an insurance office. In association with this request, the applicant is proposing a new parking area located in the existing front yard of the property.

Development Review Appeal

Record No. SIT2020DEC01



II.A



Record No. SIT2020DEC01



STAFF COMMENTS

Staff issued comments to the applicant pertaining to the location of the proposed parking area, specifically noting concerns with regard to the following:

- Section 1101.7(D)(5)(a) of the Zoning Code states, *Parking areas located in the front setback or between the principal structure and any public street, including corner lots are strongly discouraged. Parking should be provided to the side and rear of the building, with no more than one (1) parking aisle on the side of any structure.* As proposed, the development does not comply with the above provision.
- As indicated on the site plan, a roundabout is planned for the intersection of Prince St and Country Club Rd. As proposed, it is unlikely that the development would allow sufficient space for a future sidewalk or applicable landscape requirements. Additionally, the proposed layout creates an unattractive relationship between the public and private realms at a prominent corner location.
- A key component and benefit to adaptive reuse projects is the opportunity to minimize impacts to the existing character of a given neighborhood. The north side of Prince St has an established residential development pattern from Salem Rd to McDowell Dr with no existing surface parking lots. Approval of the current parking layout will disrupt the defined character of the neighborhood.
- The site in question has ample space on the property to provide parking to the rear of the structure allowing the site to be effectively used while also meeting the City's development standards.

At this time the applicant has not addressed the comments noted above and has appealed the decision of the Planning Department in accordance with Section 1101.5 (Development Review Appeals).

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS

Planning Staff recommends disapproval of the Site Development Plan as proposed. The proposed development plan conflicts with multiple provisions of the Zoning Code and would likely result in additional non-conformity with regard to City development standards.

Development Review Appeal

Record No. SIT2020DEC01



Proposed Parking Location



II.A

þ

Development Review Appeal

Record No. SIT2020DEC01















Request to Rezone: R-1 to C-2

Record No. REZ2021FEB02

III.A

APPLICANT

Chris Siler Century 21 Legacy Realty 1622 Donaghey Ave Conway, AR 72034 **PROPERTY OWNER** William & Patricia Shook 1850 East German Ln

Conway, AR 72032

STAFF REVIEW BY Beth Sketoe, Planner



Location. 1850 East German Ln.

Site Area. 10.0 acres ±.

Current Zoning. R-1 (One-Family Residential). *Annexation of this property was approved at the January 12, 2021 City Council meeting.*

Adjacent Zoning. West: R-1, RU-1; East, North: N/A (Outside City); South: MF-2 (Multi-Family, 18 units/acre), MF-3 (Multi-family, 24 units/acre).

Requested Zoning. C-2 (Neighborhood Commercial).

Existing Structures. 2,810 sf single-family residence plus various smaller outbuildings.

Overlay. Lower Ridge Road Corridor Study – Traditional Neighborhood.

Comprehensive Plan. Traditional Neighborhood.

Request to Rezone: R-1 to C-2

Record No. REZ2021FEB02





0_____

Record No. REZ2021FEB02

Projected Traffic Impact. With a rezoning to C-2 the traffic impact would likely be significant for those uses permitted by right. The highest traffic generating uses allowed in C-2 are restricted retail, office, and school. As the site is currently developed as one single-family residence, but could support multiple office or retail oriented buildings if re-developed, the site could generate in excess of 1,000-1,500 vehicle trips per typical weekday.

Current Traffic Counts. East German Ln - 8,400 average daily traffic.

Flood\Drainage. The site is not within any FEMA Flood Zones.

Utilities. Water and sewer service extensions will be required to support development, but are available. Applicant will need to coordinate with Conway Corporation.

Master Street Plan. East German Ln – Minor Arterial.

Street Improvement. No current improvement plans.

STAFF COMMENTS

- The applicant is seeking the rezoning in a effort to develop the property as a self-storage facility. A request for a conditional use permit to allow mini-storage in C-2 has been submitted and will be considered on a future agenda. Such permit is dependent on the approval of this rezoning request.
- The requested C-2 zoning is not consistent with the Comprehensive Plan or Lower Ridge Road Corridor Study's designations of Traditional Neighborhood (TN). *"The plan also identifies areas appropriate for traditional neighborhoods, which are compact, pedestrian-oriented, mixed use areas that include various types of housing, commercial activities, and open space."* (Lower Ridge Road Corridor Study)
- The surrounding properties are predominantly agricultural, residential, and institutional. Establishing new commercial uses in the immediate vicinity would create a mixture of incompatible uses.
- The rezoning of a 12.7 acre site, adjacent to the southwest, to RU-1 (Restricted Use District), and associated conditional use permit to allow a self-storage facility was approved in 2015. These changes are not congruent with the Comprehensive Plan or Lower Ridge Road Corridor Study. The property has never been developed as was approved and substantial single and two-family development has occurred in the immediate area in recent years. A similar request today would not likely be supported by Planning Staff.
- The site's R-1 designation is appropriate, however given the Traditional Neighborhood designation, a zoning district supporting increased density residential or mixed-use could also be appropriate.
- The use of the property solely for commercial or light industrial uses would not be appropriate.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends denial of the rezoning request. The requested zoning does not align with either the Comprehensive Plan or Lower Ridge Road Corridor Study and is therefore not appropriate. The rezoning would allow a wide-range of commercial uses which could be incompatible with the predominantly residential surroundings, potentially having a negative impact on adjacent properties.

Request to Rezone: R-1 to C-2

Record No. REZ2021FEB02













Request to Rezone: R-1 and C-3 to S-1

Record No. REZ2021MAR01



APPLICANT/OWNER

Wesley United Methodist Church Byron Mann 2310 E Oak St Conway, AR 72032 **STAFF REVIEW BY** Levi Hill, AICP, Assistant Director



Location. 2310 E. Oak Street; Approximately 320 feet east of the intersection of Sowell Dr and E. Oak St.

Site Area. 5.96 acres +/-.

Current Zoning. R-1 (One-Family Residential); C-3 (Highway Commercial).

Requested Rezoning. S-1 (Institutional).

Adjacent Zoning. North – R-1 (One-Family Residential); East – Outside City Limit; South, West – C-3 (Highway Commercial).

Existing Structures. Religious Facility.

Overlay. None.

Comprehensive Plan. Transition/Single-family.

Request to Rezone: R-1 and C-3 to S-1

Record No. REZ2021MAR01







Record No. REZ2021MAR01

Projected Traffic Impact. The site is previously developed with a religious facility and no changes to the use are proposed as a part of the request. Therefore, there is no anticipated change in traffic volumes.

Current Traffic Counts. E Oak Street (23,000 vehicles per day).

Flood/Drainage. Portions of the site lie within the floodway and FEMA Flood Zone AE.

Utilities. Utilities are available.

Master Street Plan. Oak St – Major Arterial.

Street Improvement. No improvements are planned at this time.

STAFF COMMENTS

- The applicant is requesting a rezoning to S-1 for an existing religious facility.
- The requested rezoning would provide consistency with the existing use of the site as well as remedy the current split zoned condition of the property.
- The Comprehensive Plan designates the site as transition and single-family which is consistent with the applicant's rezoning request.
- The applicant is requesting the rezoning to permit the construction of a storage building ancillary to the existing religious facility.
- The use of the property for a religious facility is appropriate.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request as it will allow appropriate use of the property and will not likely result in harm to adjacent property.



Request to Rezone: R-1 and C-3 to S-1

Record No. REZ2021MAR01















In 2019, the Conway Historic District Commission was awarded a \$25,000 Certified Local Government grant through the Arkansas Historic Preservation Program for the purpose of developing a city-wide historic preservation plan. The Conway City Council committed to a \$25,000 match for the project. The Walker Collaborative, an historic preservation consultant, was selected for the project. The Plan was completed in the fall of 2020 and was adopted by the Historic District Commission in February 2021.

Link to Historic Preservation Plan



The following items, which do not require public hearing or Planning Commission action, have been reviewed and approved by the Director of Planning & Development and are being reported to the Planning Commission as required by the Zoning Code and Subdivision Ordinance.

Development Review Approvals

• Lower Ridge Road Duplexes (SIT2020AUG02)

Lot Splits, Lot Mergers, Minor Subdivisions, and Major Finals (submitted for review)

• Orchard Hills, Phase II (SUB2021FEB03)

Lot Splits, Lot Mergers, and Minor Subdivisions (filed for record)

- Museum Meadows (P2021-00006)
- Replat Lot 1R, Calvary Subdivision (P2021-00008)
- Orchard Hill Replat (P2021-000010)
- Esmeralda Subdivision (P2021-00011)